Wiltshire Council

~———"-_ Where everybody matters

AGENDA

Meeting:  Northern Area Planning Committee

Place: Council Chamber - Council Offices, Monkton Park, Chippenham,
SN15 1ER

Date: Wednesday 7 August 2019

Time: 3.00 pm

Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Craig Player, of Democratic Services,
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 713191 or email
craig.player@wiltshire.gov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115.

This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk

Membership:
Clir Tony Trotman (Chairman) Clir Mollie Groom
Clir Peter Hutton (Vice-Chairman) CliIr Chris Hurst
Clir Chuck Berry Clir Toby Sturgis
ClIr Christine Crisp ClIr Brian Mathew
Clir Gavin Grant Clir Ashley O'Neill

Clir Howard Greenman

Substitutes:

Clir Ben Anderson Cllr Jacqui Lay

Clir Bill Douglas Cllr Melody Thompson
Clir Ruth Hopkinson Clir Nick Murry

Cllr Bob Jones MBE CliIr Philip Whalley

Page 1


http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/

Recording and Broadcasting Information

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the
Council’s website at http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv. At the start of the meeting, the
Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being recorded. The images and
sound recordings may also be used for training purposes within the Council.

By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of
those images and recordings for broadcasting and/or training purposes.

The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.

Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in
relation to any such claims or liabilities.

Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is
available on request.

Parking

To find car parks by area follow this link. The three Wiltshire Council Hubs where most
meetings will be held are as follows:

County Hall, Trowbridge
Bourne Hill, Salisbury
Monkton Park, Chippenham

County Hall and Monkton Park have some limited visitor parking. Please note for
meetings at County Hall you will need to log your car’s registration details upon your
arrival in reception using the tablet provided. If you may be attending a meeting for more
than 2 hours, please provide your registration details to the Democratic Services Officer,
who will arrange for your stay to be extended.

Public Participation

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of
guestions and statements for this meeting.

For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution.

The full constitution can be found at this link.

For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for
details

Page 2


http://www.wiltshire.public-i.tv/
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/parkingtransportandstreets/carparking/findacarpark.htm?area=Trowbridge
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD1629&ID=1629&RPID=12066789&sch=doc&cat=13959&path=13959
https://cms.wiltshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1392&MId=10753&Ver=4

AGENDA

Part |

Items to be considered when the meeting is open to the public

Apologies

To receive any apologies or substitutions for the meeting.

Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 14)

To approve and sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 10
July 2019.

Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by
the Standards Committee.

Chairman's Announcements

To receive any announcements through the Chair.

Public Participation

The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public.

Statements

Members of the public who wish to speak either in favour or against an
application or any other item on this agenda are asked to register by phone,
email or in person no later than 2.50pm on the day of the meeting.

The rules on public participation in respect of planning applications are detailed
in the Council’s Planning Code of Good Practice. The Chairman will allow up to
3 speakers in favour and up to 3 speakers against an application and up to 3
speakers on any other item on this agenda. Each speaker will be given up to 3
minutes and invited to speak immediately prior to the item being considered.

Members of the public will have had the opportunity to make representations on
the planning applications and to contact and lobby their local member and any
other members of the planning committee prior to the meeting. Lobbying once
the debate has started at the meeting is not permitted, including the circulation
of new information, written or photographic which have not been verified by
planning officers.

Page 3



uestions

To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the Council
received in accordance with the constitution which excludes, in particular,
guestions on non-determined planning applications.

Those wishing to ask questions are required to give notice of any such
questions in writing to the officer named on the front of this agenda no later than
5pm on 31 July 2019 in order to be guaranteed of a written response. In order to
receive a verbal response questions must be submitted no later than 5pm on 02
August 2019. Please contact the officer named on the front of this agenda for
further advice. Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman decides
that the matter is urgent.

Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’'s website.

Planning Appeals and Updates (Pages 15 - 16)

To receive details of completed and pending appeals and other updates as

appropriate.

Planning Applications

To consider and determine the following planning application:

7a 18.11596.FUL - Land adjoining Wessex Water, Westmead Lane,
Chippenham, SN15 3HZ (Pages 17 - 38)

Urgent Items

Any other items of business which, in the opinion of the Chairman, should be

taken as a matter of urgency.

Part Il

Items during whose consideration it is recommended that the public should be
excluded because of the likelihood that exempt information would be disclosed

Page 4



Wiltsrire Council

~——-~_ Where everybody matters

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD
ON 10 JULY 2019 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, MONKTON
PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER.

Present:

Cllr Tony Trotman (Chairman), Clir Peter Hutton (Vice-Chairman), Clir Chuck Berry,
ClIr Christine Crisp, Cllr Gavin Grant, Clir Howard Greenman, ClIr Mollie Groom,
CllIr Chris Hurst, Cllr Toby Sturgis, Clir Ashley O'Neill and Clir Bob Jones MBE
(Substitute)

42

43

44

45

46

47

Apologies
Apologies were received from CllIr Brian Matthews.

Clir Brian Matthews was substituted by Clir Bob Jones MBE.

Minutes of the Previous Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 12 June 2019 were presented.
Resolved:
To approve as a true and correct record and sign the minutes.

Declarations of Interest

There were no declarations of interest.

Chairman's Announcements

There were no Chairman’s announcements.

Public Participation

The Committee noted the rules on public participation.

Planning Appeals and Updates

The Committee noted the contents of the appeals update.

Page 5



48

49

Planning Applications

Attention was drawn to the late list of observations provided at the meeting and
attached to these minutes, in respect of applications 18/04322/FUL as listed in
the agenda pack.

The Committee considered the following application:

18/04322/FUL - Limetree Farm, Middle Common, Kington Langley

Public participation
John White, AGM Ltd, spoke in objection to the application.
Tom Cunningham, local resident, spoke in objection to the application.

Patrick Maguire, Asset Heritage Consulting, spoke in objection to the
application.

Marc Willis, the agent, spoke in support of the application.
Gillian Livock, the applicant, spoke in support of the application.
Mark Turek, local resident, spoke in support of the application.

The Planning Officer, Charmian Eyre-Walker, introduced a report which
recommended granting planning permission, subject to conditions, for the
erection of a general purpose (equestrian and agricultural) building
(resubmission of 17/09061/FUL).

Key issues highlighted included: principle of development; impact on landscape
and ecology; impact on heritage assets; impact on neighbour amenity and
drainage.

Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions
of the officer which focused on: external storage; lighting; the demolition of the
existing building; impact on neighbour amenity and impact on landscape and
ecology.

Members of the public then had the opportunity to address the Committee, as
detailed above.

Clir Howard Greenman, Division Member, spoke regarding the application with
the main points focusing on drainage, highways and lighting impact.

At the start of the debate a proposal was moved by ClIr Peter Hutton, seconded

by CliIr Christine Crisp to grant planning permission as detailed in the report and
subject to additional conditions addressing external storage and light spill.

Page 6



During the debate the main points raised were: impact on heritage assets;
impact on neighbour amenity; the location and size of the proposed building; the
lighting impact; the efforts of the applicant to mitigate concerns and the usage of
the proposed building.

Resolved

That planning permission is approved in accordance with the officer
recommendation with conditions restricting external storage and
structures and revised wording of condition 6 to address light spill from
the approved structures and lighting of the access route.

1.

b)
c)
d)

f)

9)

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the
expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following approved plans:

Site Plans as proposed 2888/502A & 2888/501A) received 25th March
2019.

Building elevations (2888/503)
Site sections (2888/505 & 2888/506)
Building layout (2888/504) all received 9th October 2018.

Site location plan (2888/01) received 23rd May 2018.

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper
planning.

No development shall commence on site (including any works of
demolition), until a Construction Method Statement, which shall
include the following:

the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;

loading and unloading of plant and materials;

storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development;
the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including
decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where
appropriate;

wheel washing facilities;

measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during
construction;

a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition

Page 7



h)
i)

and construction works; and
measures for the protection of the natural environment.
hours of construction, including deliveries;

has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local
Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be complied with
in full throughout the construction period. The development shall not
be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the approved
construction method statement.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to
enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning
permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local
Planning Authority before development commences in order that the
development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to minimise
detrimental effects to the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of
the area in general, detriment to the natural environment through the
risks of pollution and dangers to highway safety, during the
construction phase.

No development shall commence on site until details of the proposed
ground floor slab levels have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved levels details.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to
enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning
permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local
Planning Authority before development commences in order that the
development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests
of visual amenity.

No materials, structures, feed, goods, plant, machinery, equipment,
finished or unfinished products/parts of any description, skips,
crates, containers, waste or any other item whatsoever shall be
placed, stacked, deposited or stored outside on the site.

REASON: In the interests of the appearance of the site and the
amenities of the area.

No external or internal lighting shall be installed in the building or at
the site until plans showing the type of light appliance, the height
and position of fitting, illumination levels and light spillage in
accordance with the appropriate Environmental Zone standards set
out by the Institute of Lighting Engineers in their publication
"Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light" (ILE, 2005)",
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local

Page 8



Planning Authority. The approved lighting shall be installed prior to
1st occupation of the permitted building and shall be maintained in
accordance with the approved details in perpetuity with no additional
lighting shall be installed.

REASON: In the interests of the amenities of the area and to
minimise unnecessary light spillage above and outside the
development site.

7. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the
recommendations of the Phase One Ecology Report received by the
Council on 20th February 2019.

REASON: To protect the ecology on site.

8. No development shall commence on site until the exact details and
samples of the materials to be used for the external walls and roofs
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved details.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to
enable this matter to be considered prior to granting planning
permission and the matter is required to be agreed with the Local
Planning Authority before development commences in order that the
development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests
of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the area

9. Prior to the start of construction, an Ecological Construction Method
Statement (ECMS) to include a bat strategy for the site will be
submitted for the approval of the LPA's ecologist. This must include
precautionary measures including (but not exclusively) a
methodology of the removal of all structures or features with any
potential to support roosting bats. It will also provide details of all
precautionary measures for reptiles, breeding birds and common
amphibians. The ECMS will provide details of further surveys for the
mature ash tree (within the hedgerow on the western boundary) if
works to the tree are proposed. A plan must be included which
provides details and locations of Heras fencing protection for the
retained hedgerow/trees and the plan will include the number, design
and show the locations of bat and bird boxes and any other features
designed specifically for enhancement of the site for biodiversity.

REASON: To protect the ecology on site.

10. Within 2 months of the first occupation of the development hereby

Page 9



11.

12.

13.

permitted the building shown on plan 2888/501 as "Existing Building"
shall be completely demolished and all debris removed from the site.

REASON: In the visual amenity of the Kington Langley Conservation
Area.

There shall be no DIY livery horses kept at the site and no events
held. Any tuition shall be restricted to no more than 15 hours per
week each calendar year.

REASON: In order to safeguard the amenities of adjoining occupiers
and the surrounding land.

No development shall commence on site until a detailed scheme for
the discharge of foul water from the site has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning authority. The
development shall not be first occupied until the approved scheme is
in place.

REASON: To ensure the site can be adequately drained.

No development shall commence on site until a detailed scheme for
the discharge o surface water from the site, incorporating
sustainable drainage details, has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not
be first occupied until the approved drainage scheme is in place .

REASON: To ensure the site can be adequately drained.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:

The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before
such works commence.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:

Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive material
samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the Planning
Officer where they are to be found.

Page 10



50

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:

Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:

There is a low risk that bats may occur at the development site. Many
species of bat depend on buildings for roosting, with each having its own
preferred type of roost. Most species roost in crevices such as under
ridge tiles, behind roofing felt or in cavity walls and are therefore not often
seen in the roof space. Bat roosts are protected all times by the
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended)
even when bats are temporarily absent because, being creatures of habit,
they usually return to the same roost site every year. Planning permission
for development does not provide a defence against prosecution under
this legislation or substitute for the need to obtain a bat licence if an
offence is likely. If bats or evidence of bats is found during the works, the
applicant is advised to stop work and follow advice from an independent
ecologist or to contact the Bat Advice Service on 0845 1300 228, email:
enquiries@bats.org.uk or visit the Bat Conservation Trust website.

Urgent Items

There were no urgent items.

(Duration of meeting: 3.00 - 4.00 pm)

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Craig Player of Democratic Services,

direct line 01225 713191, e-mail craig.player@wiltshire.qov.uk

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Minute Item 48

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING 10.07.19

LATE OBSERVATIONS

Item 7a: 18/04322/FUL - Limetree Farm, Middle Common, Kington Langley, Chippenham
Officer comment:

Plans as set out in condition 2 amend to include Site Section 2888/505 Rev A (replace
2888/505) . This is an updated site section plan which demonstrates that the parking area is
to be sunk down to the level of the proposed building.

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Wiltshire Council
Northern Area Planning Committee
7' August 2019

Planning Appeals Received between 28/06/2019 and 26/07/2019

Application No Site Location Parish Proposal DEL or | Appeal Type Officer Appeal Overturn
COMM Recommend | Start Date | at Cttee
18/11077/FUL Land known as The CHIPPENHAM Works to facilitate 4 car parking spaces DEL Written Refuse 19/07/2019 No
Orchard, St Mary Street and turning area. Representations
Chippenham, SN15 3JJ
18/11777/FUL Peterborough Lodge DAUNTSEY Siting of a mobile Home DEL Written Refuse 15/07/2019 No
Dauntsey Lock Representations
Dauntsey, Wiltshire
SN15 4HD
Planning Appeals Decided between 28/06/2019 and 26/07/2019
Application No Site Location Parish Proposal DEL Appeal Type | Officer Appeal Decision Costs
or Recommend | Decision Date Awarded?
COMM
18/08590/FUL Land south of CHIPPENHAM Erection of new dwelling DEL Written Reps | Refuse Dismissed 24/07/2019 | None
Paddock House
The Paddocks
U Chippenham
o Wiltshire, SN15 3DN
@
H
o1

9 wa)| epuaby




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 7a

REPORT OUTLINE FOR AREA PLANNING COMMITTEES Report No.

Date of Meeting 7™ August 2019

Application Number 18/11596/FUL

Site Address Land adjoining Wessex Water, Westmead Lane, Chippenham,
SN15 3HZ

Proposal Climbing centre and skate park with associated landscaping and
development of the Westmead recreation ground and open
space.

Applicant Chippenham Borough Lands Charity

Town/Parish Council CHIPPENHAM

Electoral Division HARDENS AND ENGLANDS

Grid Ref 390534 174014

Type of application Full Planning

Case Officer Charmian Eyre-Walker

Reason for the application being considered by Committee
1. Purpose of Report

The purpose of the report is to assess the merits of the proposal against the policies of the
development plan and other material considerations and to consider the recommendation
that the application be approved.

The application has been called to Committee under the Scheme of delegation where
although it would be possible to deal with certain applications under delegated powers but
where the Director for Economic Development and Planning considers it inappropriate to do
so, having considered any public representation and consultee responses.

2. Report Summary

Issues to be addressed:

Principle of the development.

Impact on flooding/flood storage capacity.
Drainage

Impact on Chippenham Conservation Area
Access and parking/Impact on highways
Design and impact on visual residential amenity
Ecology

Page 17



¢ Noise
e Lighting

17 letters of objection received together with 174 letters of support and a further 38 letters of
comment.

Chippenham Town Council support the application subject to the following:

Support in principle subject to the following being provided:-

* Revised timetable of hours of operation for the skate park element.
* Noise assessment to cover the community hub element.

* Robust traffic management plan.

* Lighting strategy.

* Evidence of detailed flood mitigation.

» Commitment by the applicant (CBLC) to carry out regular reviews on this facility,
consulting residents and users.

* Security measures to prevent anti-social behaviour.

 Habitat and tree survey to cover flood compensation works area.

* Flood risk assessment to cover the community hub element.
Transport assessment to cover the community hub element

3. Site Description

The site lies immediately to the south of Chippenham Town Centre, bounded by the River
Avon to the west, Avenue La Fleche to the South. The redeveloped Hygrade factory — now
retirement complexes and Wessex Water lie to the North with Flowers Yard and the
Paddocks to the East.

The field is primarily a large open sports field, regularly mown with a small copse in the
South East Corner forming a tree planted embankment to Avenue La Fleche and larger
trees more sporadically along the river bank. There are a series of older buildings presently
used for storage and a scout hut with parking for 44 cars on the existing Westmead car
park to the north of the buildings. There are a number of key service and utility routes which
must be maintained that run across the site.

There is a public cycle way which connects the site to the adjacent riverside millennium
walkway and the larger Westmead open space beyond Avenue La Fleche. Access is via
Westmead Lane although pedestrian access is possible along the cycleway and from Little
Englands, via a small wooded copse.

The residential development of South West Chippenham (approx.1000 dwellings) will have
a route that passes by linked via the extensive country park further providing access to the
proposed facilities.

4. Planning History

Page 18



N/95/02273/FUL — Change of use of land for playing fields/car parking & associated works
use land for car parking.

N/94/01115/0OUT — Erection of single storey prefabricated building together with car parking
and vehicular access.

N/04/02148/DP3 — Creation of static skate park.(withdrawn)

N/05/02887/FRC — Consultation on woodland grant scheme application.

N/07/00155/FUL — Retention of temporary car park adjacent Wessex Water depot and
pavilion.

15/12208/FUL — Existing access and hardstanding converted to community car park.
17/00334/FUL — Demolish hall building.

5. The Proposal

The application was originally submitted in hybrid format. The outline element of the
application comprised a large community hub, with a diverse range of uses. This aspect was
subsequently withdrawn. The detailed element, now for consideration, comprises a skate
park, indoor climbing centre (D2), outdoor climbing wall and associated café, works and
landscaping.

The activity zone the skate park is proposed as a concreate landscape with accents in the
form of brick quarter pipe and various landscaping features, including coloured concrete
ledges and rails.

The climbing facility is a range of 3 buildings of heights varying from the building housing the
café, changing and associate facilities, which measures approx. 24m x 8.5m at a height of
approx.10m (incorporating the plinth required to lift the facility out of the flood plain). A
covered bike shelter measuring approx. 4.7 m in height lies to the east. There is a first floor
bouldering section above part of the building. This building is linked at first floor level to
another building which contains the main bouldering section linked to a taller building
containing an indoor climbing wall with an outdoor climbing wall on its west face.

Together these 2 buildings measure approx. 25m x 13m together with a further approx. 3m
external overhang over the outside climbing wall. The two buildings are approximately
16.5m and 13.7m in height. The external climbing wall backs onto the skate park.

The land to the south is to be developed with an adventure play zone, water play zone,
exercise trail and boule pit. The land to the east will be used for bike storage, drop off areas
and a covered BBQ facility. Details of the exact facilities will need to be controlled by way of
planning condition.

Parking for 9 cars is provided on the actual site to the north of the buildings together with the
parking as described in section 8.

6. Planning Policy

Wiltshire Core Strateqy

CP1 Settlement Strategy
CP2 Delivery Strategy

Page 19



CP3 Infrastructure

CP9 Chippenham Central Areas of Opportunity

CP 10 Spatial Strategy: Chippenham Community Area
CP56 Contaminated Land

CP57 Ensuring High Quality Design and Place Shaping
CP58 Ensuring Conservation of the Historic Environment
CP60 Sustainable Transport

CP61 Transport and New Development

CP67 Flood Risk

CP68 Water Resources

Saved Policies from North Wiltshire Local Plan 2011

NE18 Noise and Pollution

National Planning Policy Framework

Achieving Sustainable Development — Core Planning Principles (paras 7, 14 and 17)
Chapter 12
Chapter 14
Chapter 15
Chapter 16

Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) for flood risk and coastal change was launched as a web
based resource in March 2014. It provides guidance on how policies in The Framework are to
be implemented in practice. It replaced a wide range of circulars, planning guidance and good
practice guides, including the Technical Guidance to The Framework on development in areas
at risk of flooding (March 2012).

Table 2 Paragraph 066, of the Flood Risk and Coastal Change section of the PPG
(Reference ID: 7-066-20140306) classifies residential institutions such as rest bite
accommodation and restaurants as a ‘more vulnerable’ flood risk land use and Café’s and
community spaces as ‘less vulnerable’ the sports facilities are identified as ‘water compatible’.
Table 3 Paragraph 067 (Reference ID: 7-067-20140306) shows that more vulnerable uses
are acceptable in Flood Zones 1 and 2 but not Zones 3b (the functional floodplain). It also
shows that more vulnerable uses will only be acceptable in Zone 3a if the Exception Test has
been satisfied.

With regards to applying the sequential test to individual planning applications, Paragraph
033 (Reference 1D:7-033-20140306) states:

“For individual planning applications where there has been no sequential testing of the
allocations in the development plan, or where the use of the site being proposed is not in
accordance with the development plan, the area to apply the Sequential Test access will be
defined by local circumstances relating to the catchment area for the type of development
proposed as set out in our methodology. For some developments this may be clear, for
example, the catchment area for a school.

In other cases it may be identified from other Local Plan policies, such as the need for

affordable housing within a town centre, or a specific area identified for regeneration. For
example, where there are large areas in Flood Zones 2 and 3 (medium to high probability of

Page 20



flooding) and development is needed in those areas to sustain the existing community,
sites outside them are unlikely to provide reasonable alternatives.” (highlighted and
underlined text — authors emphasis)

“When applying the Sequential Test, a pragmatic approach on the availability of alternatives
should be taken. For example, in considering planning applications for extensions to existing
business premises it might be impractical to suggest that there are more suitable alternative
locations for development elsewhere. For nationally or regionally important infrastructure the
area of search to which the Sequential Test could be applied will be wider than the local
planning authority boundary.”

Chippenham Vision Masterplan promotes a mix of uses that will contribute to the sustainable
development of Chippenham. Policy 4.1 is concerned with maintaining, consolidating and
improving sport and recreation provision in the town centre, in particular utilising the river
corridor.

Policy 6.2 states that there is potential to enhance community uses in the Westmead area of the
town.

7. Consultations

Chippenham Town Council - support the application, but comment as follows:

Support in principle subject to the following being provided:-

* Revised timetable of hours of operation for the skate park element.

* Noise assessment to cover the community hub element.

* Robust traffic management plan.

» Lighting strategy.

» Evidence of detailed flood mitigation.

+ Commitment by the applicant (CBLC) to carry out regular reviews on this facility,
consulting residents and users.

» Security measures to prevent anti-social behaviour.

» Habitat and tree survey to cover flood compensation works area.

* Flood risk assessment to cover the community hub element.

* Transport assessment to cover the community hub element.

Environment Agency - Raises objections as follows:

The site lies in Flood Zone 3b (the functional floodplain) and therefore has a high risk of
flooding. National Planning Guidance confirms that this zone comprises land where water
should flow or be stored in times of flood. The Environment Agency has objected to the
proposal. However, they have also gone onto to say that although they provide technical advice,
they appreciate that the LPA has multiple issues to weigh up in the determination of an
application. Flood risk is just one of those issues. As an area of land in flood zone 3b the site is
an area where flood water has to flow or be stored at times of flood”. For this reason the only
types of development allowable in flood zone 3b, under the NPPF guidance, are ‘water

Page 21



compatible’ development and essential infrastructure. They have interpreted the development
proposed as less vulnerable, because it includes a proposed café.

Even if the proposed development were to be defined as ‘water compatible’ those types of
application must pass the exceptions test where uses should be designed to:

¢ Remain operational and safe for users at times of flood
¢ Resultin no net loss of floodplain storage
¢ Not impede water flows and not increase flood risk elsewhere

They therefore must maintain their policy objection based on the NPPF guidance. The type of
development proposed may endanger users of the site and/or increase flood risk elsewhere.

They are aware that the LPA may wish to approve the application against this advice for other
reasons of community benefit. It is the responsibility of the LPA in this instance to formulate
those conditions.

Drainage Engineer - originally objected, but following meetings and a revised FRA he has
withdrawn their holding objections and suggests conditions.

Highways Officer does not object subject to conditions, following the submission of a revised
Transport Assessment. The background to this recommendation is contained in the Impact on
Highways and Parking section in the Planning Assessment below.

Sport England - does not object to the proposal.

Ecology - states that the application details including the Extended Phase 1 Habitat Survey
report by Ellendale Environmental (December 2017). The report and its recommendations within
Section 5.0 Conclusions are considered suitable. The retention of the 20m buffer to the River
Avon corridor is welcomed. We note, however, that the external lighting plan appear to indicate
that there would be light spill onto the river corridor and this could disturb wildlife including
Otters and bats. We therefore recommend that the lighting scheme should be amended to
significantly reduce and preferably avoid light spill onto the river and it's 20m buffer

corridor. This may be achieved through alternative lighting design and/ or locations so that any
spill onto the river and its corridor are below a level of 1 lux. This information should be
provided before determination.

The following are recommended to be secured by condition, where appropriate:

e A Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) to include measures to protect
the river corridor and protected species protection measures including In relation to
nesting birds, during the clearance and construction phases.

o Details of biodiversity enhancement in line with Section 5 of the ecology report. Itis
recommended that this is extended to include details of management of the river corridor
habitat.

Landscape officer -supports the proposal and states:

“l note the application is supported by the submission of a Landscape and Visual Impact
Assessment (LVIA), prepared by Elkins Architects.

Page 22



| observe the submitted LVIA includes assessment of landscape and visual receptors without
actually defining whether these assessed effects are negative, positive or neutral in nature. |
also observe that these effects are assessed in terms of ‘significance’. The current guidelines
for LVIA (GLVIA 3" Edition) steer landscape practitioners engaged in carrying out LVIA not to
assess effects in terms of their ‘significance’ for Non EIA development such as this (highlighted
within GVLIA3 Statement of Clarification 1/13 (para. 4). The reason for this is because if an
assessor identifies any ‘significant’ effects during evaluation of non EIA Development, then this
in itself could subsequently trigger or indicate the requirement for an Environmental Impact
Assessment.

To be clear, while this development proposal could result in some adverse landscape and visual
effects, the scale and nature of development and the resulting magnitude of change would not
result in any ‘significant’ environmental effects (landscape or visual) and would not constitute
EIA development if EIA Screening opinion were to be requested. As the description of
development does not meet any qualifying EIA threshold criteria (i.e. Schedule 1 or Schedule 2
development) and the types and characteristics of potential impacts resulting from the
construction and future operation of this development would not result in any potential for any
‘significant’ environmental impacts to arise or be generated.

The proposed development will result in the loss of a small part of an existing recreational field,
which is currently available to the public. The development will result in some permanent
change effects to the site itself and to views from surrounding POS areas. However, the new
development is complimentary in terms of its use for recreation, health and enjoyment located
within an existing area of POS (recreation field). The new buildings will be visible from a number
of public visual receptors including the adjacent footpath/cycleway users (North Wiltshire Rivers
Route) and by road users travelling along Avenue La Fleche. However, while these effects
would be permanent and adverse in nature they would also be limited and localised and the
residual effects would reduce slightly with the passage of time, as and when the new tree
planting matures.

| did provide some pre-application landscape advice in relation to this proposed development
highlighting particular concern about the use of steel cladding materials to the elevations of
these new buildings etc. The proposals have responded positively in this regard with
introduction of timber cladding, but | defer further definitive consideration of appropriate building
design and use of building materials to this Council’s Urban Designer.

While the new development proposal will result in some obvious and permanent localised
adverse landscape and visual change effects, | do not consider the magnitude of these to result
in any particularly harmful effects to existing landscape features, landscape character or to
public visual amenity. | note the inclusion of broadleaf native tree planting fronting the river with
some ornamental tree planting lining the access and fronting the recreation field. | suggest this
is an appropriate soft landscaping proposal in the context of the site. This new tree planting,
should help provide some immediate new landscape structure and in my opinion will provide an
appropriate interface with the adjoining areas of POS and the local Public Rights of Way
network, as this new planting matures and blends into the framework of existing trees and
vegetation adjoining the application boundary and riparian corridor.

Despite my comments and observations made regarding the submitted LVIA, | do not identify a

need or requirement for the applicant to revisit or revise their LVIA submission in this instance,
as it would serve little or no further advantage in assessing this application in my opinion. The

Page 23



Photomontages included within the submitted LVIA show some selected viewpoints both
existing (before) and with proposed development (after). These would be useful for Elected
Members to view if this application is to be determined by the Planning Committee.

If the LPA is minded to grant planning permission for this development then I confirm that the
landscape proposals as currently illustrated on the submitted ‘Landscaping Plan’ provide an
acceptable detailed landscaping scheme.

I recommend that it will be necessary for the landscaping scheme, as currently illustrated and
specified on the submitted ‘Landscaping Plan’ (dwg. no. 493/PL/18 rev: A) to be conditioned to
be implemented in full within an agreed and clearly specified timeframe, or agreed trigger point.
(Please use standard Wiltshire Council ‘Implementation of landscaping’ Condition) incorporating
5 year maintenance period and annual plant replacement clause for any failed planting etc.”

Tree Officer - states: “Whilst | have no objection to the proposal itself, the trees surrounding the
Wessex Water site will need to be afforded some sort of protection during construction so that
the roots and canopies are not damaged. The trees themselves are not particularly good
specimens however as a group provide a level of screening and amenity value and the
developers need to consider their retention at this stage of the planning application.”

Subsequently an Arboricultural Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan were submitted
which are considered to be acceptable and should be conditioned.

Urban Design Officer - commented on the original and more information was submitted (The
original response is available on line).

Comments on the revised application are as follows:

The applicant's revised DAS adds additional information which clarifies the urban design
rationale, and revised elevation plans show all visible facade materials which, noting that
landscape and conservation officers have raised no objection to them, | deem as
acceptable and will help create a distinctive and characterful facility on this gateway
location from park to town. | would concur with the design conclusions set out in the DAS as
evidencing compliance with CP57 in particular i, ii, iii, vi & ix.

Helpfully, the phasing plan has been updated to include the bike stand in Phase 1, which is
positive, and positively, | note that the Town Council, and Sport England also support the
application and the applicant has undertaken substantial community consultation and gained a
lot of local support.

Assuming the principle of building a recreational facility within recreational open space has been
justified satisfactorily to the case officer, then | would have no objection on design grounds.

Police Liaison Officer - states following a meeting between Officers and the applicant’s agent
that matters to be considered are upgrading the fence along the boundary with Wessex Water,
the standard of lighting along the footpath leading to the terrace and the possibility of including a
window which overlooks the covered barbeque areas. The reassurance that the facility is to be
run by an experienced operator is welcome, as was the information relating to parking
restrictions that are put in place to prevent on-street parking on the approach.

Page 24



Archaeologist - supports the proposal subject to a condition securing a programme of
archaeological investigation.

Public Protection Officer - is concerned with 2 aspects of the proposal:

Lighting: Following submission of a revised lighting plan/strategy and confirmation that the any
lighting will fall into Zone E2 levels, he raises no objections.

Noise: The application was accompanied by a Noise Assessment. Additional information has
been sought and supplied and the Officer is now satisfied subject to conditions.

The Chippenham Civic Society - strongly in favour of this application. We think this is an
excellent use of the land for the benefit of all the town. With the development of the Springfield
Sports ground Westmead is no longer used as it has been in the past. The layout of the skate
park, protected from houses by the climbing centre and near the river and road, is ideal. Noise
will not be a problem. The town badly needs more facilities for young people to be active and
engaged and this scheme should be applauded and encouraged. Chippenham is lucky to have
this opportunity!

8. Publicity

The application was advertised by way of site notice, press advert and neighbour notification.

17 letters of objection received together with 174 letters of support and a further 38 letters of
comment (Those referring to FUL application alone are noted).

The reasons for objecting are summarised as follows:-

Lack of information on hours and noise levels.

Noise from the skate park surface — Is there a better surface?

Loss of green space and spoiling the natural beauty of the park and floodplain.
The climbing building is very tall and intrusive.

There is only one access, Westmead Lane, which runs past a recently completed
retirement complex. Traffic flow would be put under strain.

Do not agree that it is an easily accessible location for people in Chippenham.
If permitted — additional landscaping is required.

The land floods a lot (Photos supplied to support).

Anti-social behaviour.

Loss of trees recently.

Loss of ecology

Loss of scout facilities

Light pollution

Out of hours security?

Query about investment and quality of company who will run the facility.

Can the acoustic survey be relied upon?

Have other site been robustly considered such as Stanley Park?

Westmead will no longer be available for other sports such as cricket

Page 25



¢ Blight residential development of Wessex Water site
e Will promote reliance on the private car

9. Planning Considerations

Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the Compulsory Purchase Act
2004 require that determination of planning applications must be made in accordance with the
Development Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

In this case, the Wiltshire Core Strategy (WCS), including those policies of the North Wiltshire
Local Plan saved in the WCS, forms the relevant development plan for the Chippenham Area.

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) are
material considerations, which can accord substantial weight.

CP1 of the WCS sets out the settlement strategy for the area, identifying Chippenham as a
Principal Settlement, a focus for new development. CP2 confirms a presumption in favour of
sustainable development within the defined limits of development.

Principle of the development

The site lies within the Chippenham Conservation Area as an open and relatively flat mown
playing field. The site is bounded by the River Avon to the west, Avenue La Fleche to the South.
The redeveloped Hygrade factory — now retirement complexes and Wessex Water lie to the
North with Flowers Yard and the Paddocks to the East. There is a small copse in the South East
Corner forming a tree planted embankment to Avenue La Fleche and larger trees more
sporadically along the river bank.

As identified above, Chippenham is identified as a Principal Settlement within the WCS.
Principle settlements are identified within the WCS as being a primary focus for development in
Wiltshire. The site is central to Chippenham, within its settlement boundary, and is considered
to be in a sustainable location with access possible by means other than the private car. In
principle the development proposed is acceptable, subject to compliance with policies as set out
below.

Flood risk

The site lies in Flood Zone 3b (the functional floodplain) and therefore has a high risk of
flooding. National Planning Guidance confirms that this zone comprises land where water
should flow or be stored in times of flood. The Environment Agency has objected to the proposal
on this basis. However, they have also gone onto to confirm that whilst they provide technical
advice, they do appreciate that the LPA must consider and weigh multiple factors when coming
to a conclusion on the acceptability of the proposed development. Flood risk is merely one of
those many factors.

As an area of land in flood zone 3b the site is an area where flood water has to flow or be
stored at times of flood. For this reason the only types of development allowable in flood zone
3b, under the NPPF, are ‘water compatible’ development and essential infrastructure. Critically,
the EA have interpreted the development proposed as being ‘less vulnerable’, because it
includes a proposed café.

Page 26



In such a circumstance, it is merely the café element that falls foul of the definition of ‘less
vulnerable’ development. Recreational/sport use falls within the definition of ‘water compatible’,
but due to its relationship with the café, the whole facility is considered by the EA as “Less
Vulnerable”. Whilst a simple removal of this element from the proposal could overcome the EAs
concerns, it is understood that the café is, however, integral to its success and provides a vital
staff presence at all times that the facility is open. Indeed, its presence allows overseeing of
potential misuse of the facility (particularly the skate park) and anti-social behaviour.

The scheme is designed to compensate for loss of flood storage created by both the buildings
and skate park, so that the overall flood storage capacity, all be it re-designed, remains the
same. Flooding in the locality and any areas further down river is not considered to be affected
to an extent that would warrant a refusal. The Council’s Drainage Officer (with Wiltshire being
the lead Authority) is satisfied with the arrangements proposed. The ways in this is achieved
are:

¢ In accordance with Environment Agency requirements the FFLs of the proposed building
will be set at a level of 44.45m Above Ordnance Datum, more than 600mm above the
existing 100-year return period flood level.

¢ The proposed development shall register with the Environment Agency’s flood warnings
service to receive flood warnings. The receipt of a flood warning will initiate the flood
emergency plan for the site.

e Appropriate signage would be provided, and a formal flood evacuation plan would be
prepared and adopted by the management of the proposed development. This would
allow site users of the car park to evacuate the site, either on foot or by driving their
vehicles out of the site into Flood Zone 1, which would be via Westmead Lane to the
north of the site.

e External levels for the vehicular access will generally be raised to a level of 43.80m
AOD. This will ensure that the access/egress is above the 100-year return period flood
level and will remain dry. Access into proposed buildings will be via modular steps and
ramps so that Part M compliant access is provided without having to raise levels
unnecessarily within the floodplain.

¢ In order to mitigate against any potential loss of floodplain storage volume below the
proposed buildings, skate park and vehicular access, the development will include for
floodplain compensation to give an equivalent volume of floodplain storage on a level-
for-level basis.

e The proposed development will incorporate a positive surface water drainage system
that will intercept run-off from roofs and paved areas.

e The proposed drainage system will incorporate Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)
to manage surface water runoff sustainably and in accordance with current best practice.

e The drainage proposals shall also ensure that in the critical storm events for the 1 in
100-year return period (plus 40% allowance for future climate change) there will be no
flooding of any buildings within the site boundary and ensure that properties off site are
not exposed to an increase in flood risk as a consequence

Even if the proposed development were to be defined as ‘water compatible’ those types of
application must pass the exceptions test where uses should be designed to:

o Remain operational and safe for users at times of flood
e Resultin no net loss of floodplain storage

Page 27



¢ Not impede water flows and not increase flood risk elsewhere

The application is accompanied by an FRA and a Sequential Test analysis, which considers
other available sites within Chippenham. All are discounted, and for a variety of reasons (land
ownership, housing other facilities, poor location etc.) and it is considered that this analysis is
robust enough to ensure the Exceptions Test is passed. The Environment Agency states that it
is for the Local Planning Authority to make the judgement as to whether the sustainability
benefits of the proposal outweigh the flood risk. It is also necessary to show that the
development will be safe for its lifetime, taking into account the vulnerability of its users and that
it won’t increase flooding elsewhere.

The area of search for sites was confined to the development boundary of Chippenham, which,
by definition, makes the siting in a sustainable location. This means that Stanley Park, which
falls outside the development boundary, was not considered. It is accepted that this is the
correct viewpoint to take, given that the central location proposed will encourage transport by
means other than the private car, whereas, Stanley Park, in particular would not be so readily
accessible.

The original proposal included a community hub that incorporated, amongst other things, retail
units, starter units for business. This element was withdrawn leaving just the skate park,
climbing wall and centre together with the landscaping, café and outdoor recreational facilities
for determination.

Balance

Whilst the EAs objection is unequivocal, weighing in favour of the grant of planning permission
is the fact that the proposed development will deliver to Chippenham an invaluable facility for
young people in an accessible location. Indeed, the site is extremely well located being close to
the town centre and areas of dense population with access via footpaths and cycleways from
the wider area. The café element will give a level of surveillance, but also a meeting and
community facility.

In an effort to perhaps minimise the potential for users of the facilities to be trapped in the event
of flooding, a permission could be subject to a planning condition which requires a strategy to be
agreed and put in place so as to protect occupants/users of the café in the unlikely event that
there is an unexpected flooding incident.

The benefit of the scheme to the community (perhaps best demonstrated by the number of
supportive representations received) as well as the ability to impose planning conditions to
minimise risk, is considered to be a significant material consideration and one which is
considered to outweigh the Environment Agency’s objection., especially given the Council’s own
Drainage Engineer raises no objections.

It is therefore considered that the exceptions test is met and passed in this particular instance. It

is considered that policy CP67 is complied with and other material considerations outweigh the
objection on flooding grounds.

Impact on Chippenham Conservation Area.

Page 28



The character of this part of the conservation area is as open land and the introduction of both
building, together with other built form and a change in intensity of the use of the land will alter
its character significantly. Notwithstanding this the surrounding areas are built up, including the
former Hygrade Factory, which is now a significant development of retirement flats.

The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 provides powers for the
designation, protection and enhancement of conservation areas and the preservation of listed
buildings. The Act requires that special regard should be given to the desirability of preserving a
listed building or its setting (s. 16 and 66) as well as giving special attention to preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area (s.72).

Paragraph 190 of the NPPF requires local planning authorities to identify and assess the
particular significance of any heritage asset that may be affected by the proposal (including any
development affecting the setting of a heritage asset). Paragraphs 195 and 196 require local
authorities to assess whether there is substantial harm, less than substantial harm or no harm to
the heritage asset. Core Policy 57 requires, amongst other things, that new development must
be sympathetic to and conserve historic buildings. Core Policy 58 requires that development
should protect, conserve and where possible enhance the historic environment.

Whilst the open space provides for a significant greening effect to this part of the Conservation
Area, the development would not entirely lose such attributes and much of the works to improve
the area for recreation will enhance the area. It is considered that less than substantial harm will
be caused to the character of the area and this is greatly outweighed by the benefit to the
community that the provision of the skate park and climbing wall will deliver.

Whilst policy CP58 is not strictly complied with, other material considerations outlined in the
NPPF paragraphs 195 and 196, outweigh this and fall in favour of the development.

Access and parking/Impact on highways

Access to the site is via Westmead Lane, which has seen significant development in recent
years, with former factory buildings having been replaced by retirement flats, extra

care housing and general housing to the east (Flowers Yard). At its southern end, Westmead
Lane serves a Wessex Water depot, an enclosed yard where vehicles and equipment are
stored. Westmead Lane terminates at entrance to the CBLC (Chippenham Borough Lands
Charity) car park, which surrounds a pavilion and scout hut in community uses.

Westmead Car Park is owned by CBLC and managed by the Chippenham BID. A

Cheaper Parking Initiative is operated from the site, to reduce the cost of parking

for low income employees during working hours in Chippenham town centre. This
arrangement will continue once the development is in operation. In total there are currently 79
spaces.

The transport Statement submitted with the application has been updated since the original
submission to address the concerns of the Highways Officer, including addressing details of
management of all car parking on the site; details of competition day parking; audit of vehicle,
cycle and pedestrian routes; dedicated pedestrian provision on site; provision of trade waste
collections and a travel pan statement.

Access to the car park is restricted by barrier, with disabled visitors accessing staff at the
climbing centre facility by intercom.

Page 29



The provisions of the proposal will mean that the 79 spaces will reduce to 62 to allow for the
dedicated pedestrian route, although the plans need adjusting to further demonstrate that this is
feasible.

On a daily basis the actual site will have 7 spaces for staff with a further 2 disabled spaces,
which will only be accessible for staff of the centre. The Transport Statement (TS)does include
the arrangements for competition days, which will be infrequent (once every 6 weeks in winter
(4-5)) and 1 in the summer break. Such events may lead to 100 visitors which could demand
approx. need for 35 parking spaces. The TS suggests that competitions would be arranged for
when the car parking is least busy and parking would be wholly pre-booked. The Travel Plan
would promote alternative means of getting to the site.

Additional cycle routes are shown on the site, which would need to be subject to planning
condition to ensure that they are maintained or dedicated as public open space. 32 cycle
“parking” spaces are to be provided. Parts of Westmead Lane to access the development are in
a poor state, but the remedial works required are part of the retirement complex requirements.

Off-site parking would need to be in one of the town centre car parks on-street parking is very
limited. The predicted peaks in car parking (as borne out by a comparable facility in Bristol) are
evenings, when the majority of the town centre car parks are emptying. Whilst Saturdays are
likely to be busy for both uses, it could lead to linked trips and the Highways Officer is content to
accept this.

However, further information has been requested to clarify the swept path analysis for the
existing car park to confirm that its informal layout does, in fact ,work as stated.

The Council’s Structural engineer has raised concerns about the potential increase in use of the
river bridge to the west of the site. However, The TS states that current usage is very ow with
the development only predicted to lead to 9 movements an hour on foot and 2 by bicycle per
hour. Any contribution cannot be justified at this stage.

Design and impact on visual residential amenity

Following additional information the Council’s Urban Designer does not object to the proposal.
The facility is undeniably large (with a maximum height of approx. 16.5m), but the design of the
buildings has sought to break up the massing by having 2 units of differing heights and the
tallest is not overly wide and is at the “back” of the development when viewed from houses to
the east, which are themselves on land which is significantly higher. This together with the
distance of approx. 80-90m between the buildings and the houses, means that they will be more
readily assimilated into the view.

The outlook of these residential properties will inevitably change, but this must be weighed
against the significant public benefit of providing a managed recreational facility for the young
people of Chippenham and the wider area

The buildings will be constructed from a mixture of materials ranging from thermally treated
timber cladding, to Kingspan Cladding and insulated roofing panels in colour to match the walls
and some polycarbonate elevations. The final specification of materials to be used can be
adequately controlled by way of planning condition.

Page 30



Ecology

The Council’s Ecologist raises no concerns subject to planning conditions to secure a
Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) and details of bio diversity
enhancement in line with the submitted ecology report, including details of management of the
river corridor habitat

Noise

Noise is an issue associated with outdoor recreation, particularly skate parks, from the sound of
the wheels on the surface to the music frequently played and the shouting associated with such
an activity. The application has been accompanied by a Noise Assessment which has been
updated following initial comments by the Public Health Officer. The applicants’ acoustic
consultant has confirmed the remaining issues raised and the Public Protection officer is
satisfied that noise will not be an issue that cannot be controlled by way of planning condition or
that would justify refusal of planning permission.

It should be noted that with Avenue La Fleche running along the southwestern boundary,
background noise is significant for much of the day. This combined with the shielding of the
nearest dwellings in The Paddocks by the climbing wall building and the distance of over 100m
to the nearest dwelling together with the facility being controlled to the hours of 08:00 to 20:00
for the use of the outdoor elements of the scheme ( ie the skate park and external climbing wall)
means that the intrusion by noise will be kept to a minimum. The skate park area in particular,
but also other areas are overlooked by the café, which will be staffed at all times that the facility
remains open. This will mean that any activity likely cause a disturbance will be able to be
supervised and managed.

It is not considered that the facility would generate a noise that would justify a refusal on

planning grounds. The proposal is considered to comply with saved policy NE18 of The North
Wiltshire Local Plan 2011.

Lighting

The site lies on the edge on the suburban area and for the purposes of the overall lighting
scheme is to be set at environmental zone E2, to take this and the ecological value of the site
into consideration. This is accepted by Public Protection and is not raised as a concern by the
ecology officer.

Any external lighting can be the subject of a suitably worded planning condition.

Procedural Matters

The recommendation being made is contrary to the advice of the Environment Agency. In
certain circumstances this would mean that the application would need to be referred to the
Secretary of State for the Environment for determination. However, those circumstances are
that the application for major development which, for the purposes of this application, is non-
residential development with a new floorspace of 1,000sq or more, or a site of 1 hectare or
more.

The agent has confirmed that all the built development 830sgm and even if the carpark and the
area used for flood compensation is included, the area is 9800sgm.

Page 31



If the officer recommendation is agreed, then no referral to the Secretary of State is required.
10. Conclusion

Whilst the objection from the Environment Agency is acknowledged, material considerations in
the form of the delivery of a long sought after facility for the town with a demonstrable public
benefit and an ability to impose planning conditions which would minimise the risks identified by
the Environment Agency to an acceptable level, are considered to outweigh those objections.

In all other respects and subject to the imposition of suitably worded planning conditions, the
proposal is considered to comply with policies CP1, CP2, CP9, CP10, CP57 CP58, CP60,
CP61, CP67 and CP68 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy as well as relevant paragraphs of the
NPPF.

11. Recommendation

That Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2 No development shall commence on site until the exact details and samples of the
materials to be used for the external walls and roofs have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out
in accordance with the approved details.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this matter to
be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is required to be
agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development commences in order
that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, in the interests of visual
amenity and the character and appearance of the area.

3 All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping ( shown on
plan dwg. no. 493/PL/18 rev: A) shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding
season following the first occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the
development whichever is the sooner; All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be
maintained free from weeds and shall be protected from damage by vermin and
stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of five years, die, are removed, or
become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season
with others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
local planning authority. All hard landscaping shall also be carried out in accordance
with the approved details prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in
accordance with a programme to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning

Page 32



Authority.

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and the
protection of existing important landscape features.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans:

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

The use of the outdoor climbing wall and skate park hereby permitted shall only take
place between the hours of 08:00 time in the morning and 20:00 in the evening on
any day.

REASON: To ensure the creation/retention of an environment free from intrusive
levels of noise and activity in the interests of the amenity of the area.

No development shall until:

a) A written programme of archaeological investigation, which should include on-
site work and off-site work such as the analysis, publishing and archiving of
the results, has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority; and

b) The approved programme of archaeological work has been carried out in
accordance with the approved details.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this matter to
be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is required to be
agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development commences in order
that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to enable the recording
of any matters of archaeological interest.

The development shall be carried out in complete accordance with the Arboricultural
Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan received on 18th January 2019.

REASON: To protect the trees on site.

No fires shall be lit within 15 metres of the furthest extent of the canopy of any
retained trees or hedgerows or adjoining land and no concrete, oil, cement, bitumen
or other chemicals shall be mixed or stored, and no machinery shall be stored, within
10 metres of the trunk of any tree or group of trees to be retained on the site or
adjoining land.

REASON: To ensure the safe retention of existing trees on and adjoining the site.

Page 33



10

11

12

13

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, details of the
biodiversity enhancement as set out in Section 5 of the ecology report, together with
details of management of the river corridor, shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The enhancements and management shall
be carried out as set out in the approved documents.

REASON: To protect and enhance the biodiversity of the area.

No development shall commence on site until a detailed scheme for the flood risk
amelioration and defences, as proposed in the FRA, has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON: To ensure that the development can be adequately defended against flood
risk.

Prior to their construction and notwithstanding that shown on the approved plans, full
and complete details of the outdoor play and recreation areas shall have been
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development
shall be carried out in accordance with the permitted plans.

REASON: To define the permission.

Prior to the first use of the climbing facility or cafe hereby permitted, details of a
robust flood evacuation procedure together with situations where it would be
deployed and means of temporary closure of the facility, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The operation of the climbing
facility and café shall be carried out at all times in complete accordance with the flood
evacuation procedure agreed.

REASON: To protect users of the facility.

The development hereby approved shall not commence until a Construction and
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The CEMP shall include details of the following
relevant measures:

a) An introduction consisting of construction phase environmental management
plan, definitions and abbreviations and project description and location;

b) A description of management responsibilities;

c) A description of the construction programme;

d) Site working hours and a named person for residents to contact;

e) Detailed Site logistics arrangements;

f) Details regarding parking, deliveries, and storage;

g) Details regarding dust mitigation;

h) Details of the hours of works and other measures to mitigate the impact of
construction on the amenity of the area and safety of the highway network;
and

Page 34



14

15

16

i) Communication procedures with the LPA and local community regarding key
construction issues - newsletters, fliers etc.

j) measures to protect the river corridor and protected species protection
measures including In relation to nesting birds, during the clearance and
construction phases.

There shall be no burning undertaken on site at any time.

REASON: To protect the local amenity from any adverse effects of noise, dust,
smoke and odour.

No development shall commence on site until a scheme for the discharge of surface
water from the site (including surface water from the access/driveway), incorporating
sustainable drainage details, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be first brought into use until
surface water drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved
scheme.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this matter to
be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is required to be
agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development commences in order
that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure that the
development can be adequately drained.

No development shall commence on site until details of the works for the disposal of
sewerage including the point of connection to the existing public sewer have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No dwelling
shall be first occupied until the approved sewerage details have been fully
implemented in accordance with the approved plans.

REASON: The application contained insufficient information to enable this matter to
be considered prior to granting planning permission and the matter is required to be
agreed with the Local Planning Authority before development commences in order
that the development is undertaken in an acceptable manner, to ensure that the
proposal is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage and does not increase the
risk of flooding or pose a risk to public health or the environment.

Noise from skate park activity (LAeq 60min) Shall not exceed the prevailing
Background level (LA90) as measured at the boundary of the nearest sensitive
dwelling.

REASON: Core policy 57, Ensuring high design and place shaping such that
appropriate levels of amenity are achievable.

Page 35



INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:

The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any private
property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out of any work on land
outside their control. If such works are required it will be necessary for the applicant
to obtain the landowners consent before such works commence.

If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of the site boundary, you are also
advised that it may be expedient to seek your own advice with regard to the
requirements of the Party Wall Act 1996.

INFORMATIVE TO APPLICANT:

Tree roots are normally located in the first 600mm of soil. Roots that are exposed
should be immediately wrapped or covered to prevent desiccation and to protect
them from rapid temperature changes. Any wrapping should be removed prior to
backfilling, which should take place as soon as possible. Roots smaller than 25mm
diameter can be pruned back making a clean cut with a sharp tool. Roots occurring
in clumps or over 25mm should be severed only following consultation with a
qualified arboriculturist, as such roots might be essential to the tree's health and
stability. Prior to backfilling retained roots should be surrounded with topsoil or
uncompacted sharp sand (builders sand should not be used because of its high salt
content, which is toxic to tree roots).

Page 36



18/11596/FUL
Land Adjoining Wessex Water
Westmead Lane

Wlltshlr%“ gounﬂ Chippenham
T M SN15 3HZ

;

[0 = I TR W

/
/
/

/
4

N \ Westmaad .

o 1 e
s ,\ S S R )
T o Litle Em

'1:2,300  @crown copyright and database rights 2014 Ordnance Survey 100049050

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes
	48 Planning Applications

	6 Planning Appeals and Updates
	7a 18.11596.FUL - Land adjoining Wessex Water, Westmead Lane, Chippenham, SN15 3HZ
	18.11596.FUL - Land adj Wessex Water, Westmead Lane, Chippenham - location plan


